

13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

# Financial Supervision Authority's user instructions for its system for reporting the financial standing and risks of supervised entities

Version	Date	Change description
1.0	30.6.2022	First version.
1.1	19.9.2022	Screen views and descriptions have been updated.
1.2	21.3.2023	Corrected information about communication.
2.0	30.3.2023	Added subscription to email notifications and discussion
		functionality as well as supplemented Reporting using Excel templates.
2.1	19.6.2023	Updated section 6.2.1 Reporting using forms and 6.1 Uploading of reports to Reporter Portal.
3.0	16.10.2023	Added chapter 10 for AIFMD reporting. Added exceptions to email notifications for late reports.
3.1	10.1.2024	Added section 5.7 Submission of reports; supplemented subsection 6.2.1.1 Completing header information in national data collections; supplemented chapter 9 Discussion functionality.
3.2	28.3.2024	Updated sections 4 Reporter's contact information, 5.7 Submissions of reports and 9 Discussion functionality.
4.0	13.11.2024	Added section 5.4 Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports > Details. Updated sections 5.1 Library, 5.3 Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports, 5.7 Submissions of reports, 6.1 uploading of reports to Reporter Portal, 6.2 Using reporting forms and 9 Discussion functionality.

## Contents

Financial Supervision Authority's user instructions for its system for reporting the financial standing and risks of supervised entities 1

1 Logging in to the system	2
<ul><li>1.1 Suomi.fi identification and authorisation</li><li>1.2 Reporter Portal</li><li>1.3 Validation Service</li></ul>	2 3 3
2 Supported browsers	3
3 Refreshing screens	3
4 Reporter's contact information	4
5 Reporter Portal displays	5
<ul> <li>5.1 Library</li> <li>5.2 Monitoring of reporting</li> <li>5.3 Monitoring of reporting &gt; Monitoring of reports</li> <li>5.4 Monitoring of reporting &gt; Monitoring of reports &gt; Details</li> <li>5.5 Monitoring of reports</li> <li>5.6 Reporting forms</li> <li>5.7 Submissions of reports</li> <li>5.8 Load file</li> <li>5.9 Asynchronous task monitoring</li> <li>5.10 Discussions</li> </ul>	5 7 9 11 12 12 16 16 16



Financial Analysis	BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public
6 Submission of reports to the Reporter Portal	
<ul><li>6.1 Uploading of reports to the Reporter Portal</li><li>6.2 Using reporting forms</li><li>6.2.1 Reporting using forms</li><li>6.2.2 Reporting using Excel templates</li><li>6.2.3 Validation and submission of reporting forms</li><li>6.3 Submitting reports using SFTP connection</li></ul>	
7 Validation feedback	
<ul><li>7.1.1 Excel validation feedback</li><li>7.1.2 HTML validation feedback</li><li>7.1.3 XML validation feedback</li></ul>	
8 Report visualisation	
9 Discussion functionality	
10 AIFMD and MMF reporting	
<ul> <li>10.1 Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) dashboard</li> <li>10.2 Submitting AIFMD reports</li> <li>10.2.1 Load files</li> <li>10.2.2 Reporting forms</li> <li>10.2.3 Amendment report using reporting forms</li> <li>10.2.4 Zero report using reporting forms</li> <li>10.2.5 Validation of AIFMD reports</li> </ul>	

## 11 Logging out

12 Reporter Portal contact information

## 1 Logging in to the system

Login to the Financial Supervisory Authority's system for reporting the financial standing and risks of supervised entities (Reporting System) takes place using Suomi.fi e-Authentications and the Suomi.fi e-Authorisations service. The system has two separate elements. Through the Reporter Portal, reporters submit reports to the Financial Supervisory Authority (FIN-FSA) and communicate securely. The Validation Service is a separate element for testing reports before their submission to the FIN-FSA.

## 1.1 Suomi.fi identification and authorisation

For Suomi.fi authentication and authorisation, there are separate instructions, which can be found on the FIN-FSA's website at https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/en/reporting/suomifi eauthorizations\_instructions\_en.pdf.

17

17

19

20

24 25

26

26

28

28

28

29

29

32

32

34

34

34

35

37

37

38 39



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

## **1.2 Reporter Portal**

The Reporter Portal contains reporter-specific reporting obligations. In the Reporter Portal, the reporter can fulfil its reporting obligations either by uploading reports it has produced itself or by completing data collection-specific reporting forms. Forms are not recommended for use in large-scale reporting. In the portal, the reporter receives reporting feedback on submitted reports.

After the reporting deadline for submitting a correction report, please contact the FIN-FSA using the discussion functionality of the Reporter Portal. At the same time, provide a clarification as to why the report is being submitted again. It is not possible to resubmit a report without the invalidation of the previous report.

In the future, communication between the FIN-FSA and the reporter will take place via the Reporter Portal.

The address of the Reporter Portal is: https://reporting.finanssivalvonta.fi

## **1.3 Validation Service**

The Validation Service is a test environment for reporters. It is recommended that reports are sent to the Validation Service for checking before they are submitted as official reports to the FIN-FSA. These reports will not be used for supervisory purposes. It is possible to submit reports for future reporting dates. Submitted reports will be removed from the Reporter Portal four (4) weeks after their receipt.

The address of the Validation Service is: https://validationservice-reporting.finanssivalvonta.fi.

#### **2 Supported browsers**

The browsers supported by the Reporter Portal and Validation Service are:

- Microsoft Edge
- Google Chrome
- Apple Safari.

#### **3 Refreshing screens**

Reporter Portal screens are refreshed by clicking the icon <sup>C</sup>, for example after uploading a report.



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

## **4** Reporter's contact information

When logging in to the Reporter Portal for the first time, the reporter must provide contact information. If this information changes, it must be updated.

The contact information form can be found at the bottom left of the navigation panel in connection with the user information by clicking the icon where the user ID is displayed.

3	≛ ViiviEloranta		LOG OUT
ø	Login details Internets Workflorets		
	General Territori Diranta Territori	No see	Eval estimate B the notified A more notified at tables
•	personal email@address.fi Hore runter —		joint email@addess.fl
±	endres inguage en	Language of framework labels (1)	Language of disconners and checks labels 40
0 •	Company		
	A0990 		
	Parte tole	Ctr 	Cumy 
0			

Contact information includes the opportunity to subscribe to email notifications about a Reporter Portal incoming message and missing report. Email notifications are subscribed to by selecting the item Be notified. Email notifications can be ordered to a personal email address and/or a joint email address by completing the fields Email and/or Joint work email address. More information on the content of email notifications can be found in section *9 Discussion functionality* of the user instructions.

Please note. If a user's access authorisations are to be revoked in the near future, the user should disable email notifications before the authorisations are revoked. If a user receives email notifications from the Portal and the access authorisations have already been revoked, the NewReportingSystem helpdesk should be contacted.

In the contact information it is also possible to change interface language, language of framework labels and language of documents and checks labels. It is recommended to use the same language for all settings. For the first two settings, the language can be changed from the dropdown menus, while the abbreviation of the language must be written for the last setting. Supported languages are Finnish, Swedish and English.

After completing the form, remember to click the **Save** icon.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

The page must be refreshed after the changes, for example by pressing F5.

## **5 Reporter Portal displays**

## 5.1 Library

The following Reporter Portal displays are accessed through the Library page:

- Monitoring of reporting
  - Monitoring of reports
  - o Details
- Monitoring of reports
- Submissions of reports
  - Overview
  - o Filing and Controls
- Reporting forms
  - Tables
- Funds Reporting (AIFMD MMF)
  - Selected fund
  - o Report's details

Library Q Search in library			Ø
Directories	Monitoring of reports	The Monitoring of reporting	Submissions of reports
■ Folders 6	With this view, you can see the reports to be sent according to the reporting deadlines and the status of the sent report. BLOV_BY_EN_REPORTER	With this view, you can see the reports to be sent according to the reporting deadlines, as well as the status of the sent report.	This view allows you to see the reports to be submitted and send reports using reporting forms. SIMPLIFIED_OVERVIEW
	Treporting Forms	Funds Reporting (AIFMD MMF)	
	This view allows you to send a report using reporting forms.	FUNDS.REPORTING.REPORTER	

Library shows as default the **Recently viewed** displays. If one of the displays listed above is not visible, select **Folders** from the Directory on the left side.

#### 5.2 Monitoring of reporting

The Monitoring of reporting display includes the reports to be submitted according to the reporting deadlines as well as the status of submitted reports.



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

← Monitoring of r	eporting						Select a view	~
Filing deadline : Start	End	Reporting year	2022 Period	Domain Filing type	Reporting level Group	of entities : 01, 02, 04 Entity	File validation	(
Progress / Filing type / Group	of entities / Filing dead	lline						⊚ – :
⊖±		Expected	Loaded/Created	Extracting	Error (file)	Submitted on time	Overdue	
- AECON - Asset Encumbr	ance, Consolidated (Prude	ntial scope)						
- 🏲 Credit Institutions								
Friday 11 November 2	022 23 59	0/1	1/1	1/1	1/1	0/1	0/1	
		0%		100%	100% 1	0%	0%	_
AEIND - Asset Encumbra	nce, Individual							
- Credit Institutions								
Friday 11 November 2	022 23 59	0/1	1/1	1/1	1/1	0/1	0/1	
COREPALMCON - Addition     Credit Institutions	nal Liquidity Monitoring - (	COREP; Consolidated (Prudential sci	ipe)					
		0/1	1/1	0/1	0/1	0/1	1/1	
Monday 15 August 20	22 23:59	0%		100%	0%	0%	and the second	100%
Thursday 15 Cantarnh	er 2022 22 50	1/2	1/2	0/2	0/2	0/2	2/2	
- manaday to depress		50%	50%	0%	0%	0%		100%
Saturday 15 October :	2022 23:59	1/1	0/1	0/1	0/1	0/1	0/1	
-		100.0	0.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Tuesday 15 Novembe	r 2022 23:59	100%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	
- COREPALMIND - Additio	nal Liquidity Monitoring - C	OREP, Individual						
- P Credit Institutions								
		0/1	1/1	1/1	1/1	0/1	1/1	
Monday 15 August 20	22 23:59	0%		100%	100% 1	0%		100%

The bars in the display describe the progress of reporting.

The following menu lists are available in the display:

- Filing deadline: Start and End
- Reporting year
- Period
- Domain
- Filing type
- Reporting level
- Group of entity
- Entity
- File validation

Reporting progress is displayed by data collection:

- Expected
- Loaded / Created
- Extracting
- Error (file)
- Submitted on time
- Overdue

The grey Expected bar shows the proportion of expected reports for each period. When all expected reports for the period have been submitted, the Expected bar will show zero.

The blue Loaded/created bar shows whether a report for the period has been loaded to or created in the system using the reporting forms. However, this does not yet mean that the report has been submitted.

The green Extracting bar is activated when a report loaded to the system or created with the reporting forms is accepted for submission.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

A red Error (file) bar will appear if errors are found in the content of the submitted report.

The green Submitted on time bar and the orange Overdue bar are activated depending on whether the submitted report was received by the reporting deadline or after the deadline.

Click on reporting deadline to move to a more detailed display, where more detailed information about an individual report can be found, see next section.

## 5.3 Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports

The Monitoring of reports display has a list of reports to be submitted. The menu lists in the display are the same as in the Monitoring of reporting display.

÷	Monitorin	ig of reporting > Mo	nitoring of re	ports						rapu-testi	raportointi rapu-	testi-raportointi ra	ipu-testi-rapo	rtointi rapu-testi-raporto
*	Filing deadline : 1	3/11/2024 💼 to 🔻 13	/11/2024 🖬 😑	Reporting ye	ear : 2024 F	Period Don	nain Filing ty	/pe : COREPFRT	B × Reporting level Group o	f entities : 01 × Entity F	ile validation			G
Lis	t of tables													() — []
== •	etails 🔘 visualize	Compare 📑 edit 👻 🗸 run	VALIDATION 📩 APPROVE	e eport 👻 👍	HISTORY 📕 CO	MMUNICATIONS 👻								
۲	₹⁄ =	≛ Display 1000 ✔ elements											Search:	
	Filing type occupient code	Entity label	Default identifier	Reporting level code	Reference date	Filing deadline <sup>†</sup>	Submission date	Ticket creation date	Ticket number	User	Status	File validation	Ticket	Communication \$
+	COREPFRTB	Ziru Testifirma	8513375	205	30/09/2024	13/11/2024 23:59:59	13/09/2024 10:30:17	13/09/2024 10:32:18	E5A7EA5A414D464A8AD8C455FB5BC896	B FINFSA_SYSTEM	Extracting	Σ		

The following information is available for an individual report:

- Filing type code
- Entity label
- Default identifier
- Reporting level code
- Reference date
- Filing deadline
- Submission date
- Ticket creation date
- Ticket number
- User
- Status
- File validation
- Ticket
- Communication

The functions of the display become available by clicking the reporting obligation so that the row turns blue. For an unsubmitted report, the only available function is **Details**. Additional functions available for a submitted report include **Visualise**, **Run validation**, **Export**, **History** and **Communication**.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

**Financial Analysis** 

÷	- N	Ionitori	ng of report	ing > Moni	toring of	reports									
	Filli	ing deadline :	13/05/2024 🛱 👘	to v 13/0	5/2024 🖬 🌘	Report	ing year : 2024	Period	Domain	Filing type : COREPFRTB × Repor	ting level Group of er	itities : 01 🗙	Entity	File validatio	n C
ı	ist of	tables													⑦ - ::
	DETAIL	s 🗿 VISUAL	JZE 🔝 COMPARE 👔	EDIT 👻 🗸 RUN VAL	DATION 🖄 APPRO	/E 💽 EXPORT 👻	HISTORY		•						
6	Ð	⊷ 🛛	Display 1000	0 🗸 elements										Search:	
		Filing type code	Entity label	Default identifier	Reporting level code	Reference	Filing deadline	Submission date	Ticket creation date	Ticket number	User 🔶	Status 🍦	File validation	Ticket 🍦	Communication
0	C	OREPFRTB	Ziru Testifirma	8513375	205	31/03/2024	13/05/2024 23:59:59	31/07/2024 14:11:05	07/11/2024 13:25:23	04D7962BC60544E4BF52464EED011062	FINFSA_SYSTEM	Extracting	Σ		

- The **Details** button takes you to a subdisplay where you can see all the submitted versions of the report. The display is presented in more detail in section 5.4 Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports > Details.
- The **Visualise** button opens the report visualised in a new window. In the window, you can download the report in Excel format to your computer and check the report's validation feedback.
- The **Run validation** button opens the validation feedback in a new window.
- The **Export** button allows you to download the submitted report and the validation feedback as an Excel file to your computer. The report can also be downloaded as an XBRL, XML or CSV file. For further information on report validation, see section 7 *Validation feedback*.
- The **History** button opens a window showing the event history of the file and any messages linked to the report.
- The **Communication** button allows you to view discussions linked to the report and start a new discussion.

The **Compare, Edit** and **Approve** buttons are not enabled in the display.

The **History** and **Communication** buttons are available at the report level if the report has been submitted via the Load file page. If the report has been submitted via the Submissions of reports or Reporting forms displays, the buttons become available by selecting an individual form

from the report. The report's forms can be accessed from the icon on the left.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

**Financial Analysis** 

÷	Monito	ring of repor	ting > Mor	nitoring of	f reports											
*	iling deadline	: 13/11/2024 🛱	to v 13,	/11/2024 🖬	- Repor	rting year : 202	4 Period	Domain	Filing type : COREPFRTB ×	Report	ing level	Group of en	tities : 01	× Entity	File validat	ion C
List	of tables															⑦ – ::
DET	a definer s 💿 visibilize 🔝 compare 🚹 eith 👻 🖍 ray villadition 🖄 approve 🖪 eigent 👻 🕗 history 🗮 communications 🗸															
⊕	Display 1000 v elements															
	Filing type code	Entity label	Default identifier	Reporting level code	Reference date	Filing deadline	Submission date	Ticket creation date	Ticket number	¢	User	¢	Status	File validatio	n <sup>†</sup> Ticket <sup>†</sup>	Communication \$
-	COREPERTB	Ziru Testifirma	8513375	205	30/09/2024	13/11/2024 23:59:59	13/09/2024 10:30:17	28/10/2024 14:11:31	0A98932DBBAD400CB935BA8	03AA4405C	FINFSA_SYSTE	M	Extracting	Σ	E	
Table	code			Numbe	r of loaded files							s	tatus			
C000	1			3								E	xtracting			
C900	0			3								E	xtracting			
C910	0			3								E	xtracting			

In the form level information, it is possible to see the following:

- Table code
- Number of loaded files
- Status

## 5.4 Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports > Details

The Details button takes you to a subdisplay showing all the submitted versions of the report.

	← Mo	onitorir	ng of reporting >	Mo	nitoring of r	eports											
*	Filing	deadline : 1	13/11/2024 💼 to	<u> </u>	/11/2024 🖬 😑	Reporting y	ear : 2024	Period Dor	main Filing ty	/pe : COREPFR	TB × Reporting level Grou	p of entities : 01 ×	Entity Fil	e validation			C
	List of tal	bles															@ - ::
:	CETAILS		e 🔣 compare 👔 eur 👻	🗸 RUN V	ALIENTION 📩 APPROVE	🖸 EXPORT 👻 - 4	Энізтору 📕 сі	MMUNICATIONS ¥									
	🛛 🔹 🗖 📩 Display 1000 🗸 elements Search																
	Fi	iling type ode	Entity label	¢	Default identifier	Reporting level code	Reference date	Filing deadline	Submission date	Ticket creation 🕴 date	Ticket number	0 User	0	Status	File validation	Ticket 0	Communication 0
-	- COR	REPFRTB	Ziru Testifirma		8513375	205	30/09/2024	13/11/2024 23:59:59	13/09/2024 10:30:17	13/09/2024 10:32:18	E5A7EA5A414D464A8AD8C455FB5BC	89B FINFSA_SYSTEM		Extracting	Σ		
	Table code				N	umber of loaded file	s						Status				
	C0001				2								Extracti	ng			
	C9000 C9100				2								Extracti	ng ng			

	← Monitoring of re	porting > Monitoring of repo	rts > Details							ortointi rapu-testi-raportoi		
*	Filing deadline : 13/11/2024	to ▼ 13/11/2024 to ●	Reporting year : 2024 Peri	iod : 09 Filing type : COREPFRTB	Reporting level : 205	Group of entities : 01	Entity : 45182			G		
	List of tables									@ - ::		
•												
	€ 🔹 = ± <sub>Displa</sub>	y 1000 🗸 elements							Search:			
	Filing version number	File submitted	Update date	Identifier (LEI)	Entity code	Entity label	(	Status 🔶	Validation	Ticket status 👙		
4	Filing version No. 2	8513375.205_TK_COREP030100_COREPFRTB_2024- 09-30_20240913103146194.xbrl	13/09/2024 10:32:19	745400ZXZ4575DT5N959	45182	Ziru Testifirma		Extracting	Σ	Extracting		
4	Filing version No. 1	8513375.205_TK_COREP030100_COREPFRTB_2024- 09-30_20240913103005228.xbrl	13/09/2024 10:31:08	745400ZXZ4575DT5N959	45182	Ziru Testifirma		Invalidated	Σ	Invalidated		

The following details are available from reports:

- Filing version number
- File submitted
- Update date



## 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

- Identifier (LEI)
- Entity code
- Entity label
- Status
- Validation
- Ticket status

In EBA and EIOPA data collections, it is possible to compare the same form between filing versions. Select forms by holding down the CRTL key, then press **Compare**.

<ul> <li>Monitoring of rep</li> </ul>	porting > Monitoring of rej	ports > Details							
Filing deadline : 13/11/2024 [	to • 13/11/2024 🖬 🖨	Reporting year : 2024 Peri	iod : 09 Filing type : COREPFRTB	Reporting level : 205	Group of entities : 01 Entity	: 45182			
List of tables									0 -
VIQUALIZE 🚺 COMPARE 👔 EDIT 🔫	V RUN VALIDATION 🖄 APPROVE 💽 EXPORT 🕶	🚯 HISTORY 📕 COMMUNICATIONS 🕶							
Ð ≕ = ± <sub>Display</sub>	1000 🗸 elements							Search:	
Filing version number 🛛 🔶	File submitted	Update date	Identifier (LEI)	Entity code	Entity label	(	Status	Ualidation 🕴	Ticket status
Filing version No. 2	8513375.205_TK_COREP030100_COREPFRTB_20 09-30_20240913103146194.xbrl	13/09/2024 10:32:19	745400ZXZ4575DT5N959	45182	Ziru Testifirma		Extracting	Σ	Extracting
Update date	Table code	Table label				Stat	us	Table validation	
13/09/2024 10:32:19	C0001	Nature of Report - COREP				Extr	acting	Σ	
13/09/2024 10:32:18	C9000	Trading book and market risk threshold	to (TBT)			Extr	acting	Σ	
13/09/2024 10:32:19	C9100	Alternative Standardised Approach: Su	mmary (MKR ASA SUM)			Extr	acting	Σ	
Filing version No. 1	8513375.205_TK_COREP030100_COREPFRTB_20 09-30_20240913103005228.xbrl	13/09/2024 10:31:08	745400ZXZ4575DT5N959	45182	Ziru Testifirma		Invalidated	Σ	Invalidated
Update date	Table code	Table label				Statu		Table validation	
13/09/2024 10:31:08	C0001	Nature of Report - COREP				Invalid	lated	Σ	
13/09/2024 10:31:08	C9000	Trading book and market risk threshold	is (TBT)			Invalid	fated	Σ	
13/09/2024 10:31:08	C9100	Alternative Standardised Approach: Sur	nmary (MKR ASA SUM)			Invalid	lated	Σ	

The forms are in a new window on two different tabs. The cell is orange if the values differ between the forms, and red if the value is completely missing from the other form. You can see the new and old value by hovering the mouse over the cell.

Tables									() 🕄 🖉
	2024-09-13 10.29.39,					201	24-09-13 10.31.08,		
ldentifier LEI Denomination	COREPERTB - 205 : 8513375.205 : : C_90.00	Context Date Currency	:: 2024-09-30 :: :: EUR						
	C 90.00 Trading book and market risk thresholds (TBT)		On - and off - balance sheet						
			bosiness sobject to market risk			Breakdown by regulatory book			
				Trading book			Non-tra	iding book	
					Of which: Trading book business	for the purposes of Article 94 CRR	Positions subject to foreign	Positions subject to Commodities	In % of total assets
					Total	In % of total assets	exchange risk	nsk	
			0010	0020	0030	0040	0050	0060	0070
	Month 3	0010	1		1				
	Month 2	0020			1				
			Old value : 1 New value : 200	I	<sup>_</sup>				
<									•
HAFH C900	0_/								C9000 🗸



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

## **5.5 Monitoring of reports**

The Monitoring of reports display includes the reports to be submitted according to reporting deadlines as well as the status of submitted reports.

← I	Monitoring of rep	orts						FINANSS		FIN-FSA Validointipe	Sele	/alideringsse cta view	rvice - Valid	latic <b>~</b>
	iling deadline : Start ile ticket status	End		teporting year : 2022	Period:08 ×	Domain	Filling type	Reporting level	Group of	entitiee : 01, 02, 04	En	ity		
List	of tables												0	-
🗩 vici	ALIZE 🔝 COMPARE 🖺 EDIT 🔻	🗸 VALDATE 🧏 APPROVE	E EFORT 🕶	HISTORY										
⊕	≂, = ± Diople	1000 🗙 elemento									Sea	oh:		
	Filing type code $\ddagger$	Entity label	÷	Identifier	$\frac{1}{2}$	Reporting level	code 🔅	Reference date	÷ Us	er	÷	File status <sup>‡</sup>	File validation	
	COREPALMCON	Suomen Penkki		0000002		205		31/08/2022				Required		
-	COREPLCRDACON	Suomen Penkki		0000002		205		31/08/2022	F	INFSA_SYSTEM		Extracting	Σ (	Œ
	COREPLORDAIND	Suomen Penkki		0000002		201		31/08/2022	F	INFSA_SYSTEM		Extracting	Σ (	C

The following menu lists are available in the display:

- Filing deadline: Start and End
- Reporting year
- Period
- Domain
- Filing type
- Reporting level
- Group of entities
- Entity
- File ticket status
- File validation

A report to be submitted is identified by the fact that the user and file validation columns are empty.

For further information on report validation, see section 7 Validation feedback.

It is possible to see report information by form by clicking on the icon on the left of the reporting type:

Monito	oring of repo	orts									Sele	ct a view	~
Filing deadlin File ticket st	ine : Start tatus File validati	end End	E Rep	porting year : 2022	Period:08 X	Domsin	Filing type	Reporting level	Group o	f entitiee : 01, 02,	. 04 Em	ity	
List of tables													⑦ -
venner 🛐 e	COMPANE 🖪 EDIT 🛨	VILLEATE & APPROVE	Caroler 🗸 🗸	€ HISTORY									
Filing type	Display	1000 V elemento Entity label	÷	Identifier	÷	Reporting level co	de 💠 I	Reference date	÷ t	lser	See ÷	oh: File status ÷	File validation +
Filing ty	Display pe code	1000 V elemento Entity label Sucmen Penkki	÷	Identifier	÷	Reporting level co	de 💠 I	Reference date 31/08/2022	÷	lser	See ¢	oh: File status ≑ Required	File validation <sup>‡</sup>
Filing typ COREPALM able code	Display pe code	1000 V elemento Entity label Suomen Penkki Submissi	÷ on date	Identifier 0000002 Ticket creation date	÷	Reporting level co 205 Ticket number	de 💠 I Numi	Reference date \$1/08/2022 ber of loaded files	÷	iser Status	See ÷	roh: File status Required	File validation ÷
Filing ty COREPALM able code	Display pe code	1000 V elemento Entity label Suomen Pankki Submissi	÷ on date	Identifier 0000002 Ticket creation date	\$	Reporting level co 205 Ticket number	de ≑ i Numi a	Reference date 31/08/2022 Ner of loaded files	÷ t	Iser Status Required	See ¢ File valida	roh: File status ≑ Required	File validation ÷
Filing typ COREPALM able code		1000 V elemento Entity label Suomen Penkki Submissi	÷ It	Identifier 0000002 Ticket creation date	÷.	Reporting level co 205 7/oket number	de ≑ I Numi a a	Reference date 81/08/2022 her of loaded files	÷	Iser Status Required Required Required	See ¢ File valida	roh: File status Required	File validation
Filing ty COREPALIA table code	Display     D	1000 V elemento Entity label Suomen Penkki Submissi	÷ on date	Identifier 0000002 Ticket creation date	÷	Reporting level co 205 <i>Ticket number</i>	de ≑ I Numi 0 0 0 0	Reference date \$1/08/2022 Ver of loaded files	÷	Iser Status Required Required Required Required	Seer ¢ File valida	roh: File status ÷ Required	File validation +
Filing typ Filing typ COREPALIN Table code 10001 10001 10000 10000 10000	Display     precode      Display     precode      Display      Con      Con      Con	1000 V elements Entity label Suomen Pankki Submissi	÷ on date	Identifier 000002 Ticket creation date	÷	Reporting level co 205 <i>Ticket number</i>	de ≑ 1 Numi 0 0 0 0 0 0	Reference date \$1/08/2022 her of loaded files	÷	Iser Status Required Required Required Required	Sear ¢ File valida	oh: File status Required ation	File validation + 7/cket
Filing ty,     COREPALM     COREPALM     Content     Content		1000 V elemento Entity label Suomen Penikš Submissi	⇒  t	Identifier 0000002 Yicker creation date	÷	Reporting level co 205 <i>Ticket number</i>	de Numi a a a a a a a a a	Reference date 91/08/2022 Per of loaded files	¢	Status Required Required Required Required Required	Sear ¢ File valida	vh: File status ≑ Required	File validation ÷



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

In the form level information, it is possible to see the following:

- Table code
- Filing deadline
- Submission date
- Ticket creation date
- Ticket number
- Number of uploaded files
- Status
- File validation
- Ticket

For further information on report validation, see section 7 Validation feedback.

## 5.6 Reporting forms

This display allows reports to be submitted using reporting forms (reporting forms). For more detailed instructions on using reporting forms, see section *6.2 Using Reporting forms*.

## 5.7 Submissions of reports

In the Submissions of reports display, it is possible to examine reporting obligations and proceed to the submission of reports using reporting forms. This display is available for all data collections except AIF, AIFM, MMF, CSDR, MREL TLAC and RESOL. The AIF, AIFM and MMF reporting forms are available from the Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) display, more detailed instructions on which are in the section *10.1 Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) display* of these user instructions.

- Reporting year
- Period
- Domain
- Filing type
- Reporting level
- Group of entities
- Entity

Reporting obligations show the deadlines for reports and a possible warning message if a report is overdue. The status of the report can be **To do**, **In progress** or **Done**. In the completed reports, the results of checks are displayed in different colours (green = no errors, orange = warning, red = error).

The **Show past filings** option shows submitted and approved reports whose filing deadlines are in the past. The **Details** button, on the other hand, shows which forms are included in the report.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

← Submissions of reports	
* > Reporting year : 2023 Period Domain Filing type Reporting level Group of entities Entity	C
List of filings	V Show past filings ⊘ — 🕻
FINFSA 07/2023 COREPLORDA - LCR Delegated Act - COREP - Consolidation group of deposit bank Finski Testifirma     Due on 15/02/2023 - 342 day(s) To do	() Detain
FINF5A 04/2023 GSII - GSII - Consolidation group of deposit bank     Finski Testifima     Due on 02/10/2023 - 113 day(s)     In progress	() Details
[]       FMF6A       042023       COREPALM - Additional Liquidity Monitoring - COREP - Deposit bank including foreign branches         Fresh Testifima	() Details

Clicking a reporting obligation takes you to the 'Overview' display, where the latest version of the report is displayed. The top line shows the filing status, the filing type, the reporting level, the year, the period and the entity. If there are several versions of a report, the reporting version to be examined can be selected via the **Filing version number** button. The submission of a new report can be started by clicking the **Create new filing version** button.

← Submissions of reports > Overview			ointi rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-raportoin Ø
Filing dashboard	@ - ::	List of discussions	③ - ::
Filing Toto COREPLCRDA 205 2023 01 45174 Filing version No. 1 •	O Create new filing version	Discussions	NEW DISCUSSION
Tables population     (a out of 7 populated) (B marked as empty)	± Export Excel templates	Q. Search	
C Validation	✓ Run validation		
Submission     Pending approval and submission.	> Approve and submit		

The stages for submitting a report are:

1. Tables population

Shows how many of the forms have been filled in
(= status is other than expected or required) and
how many are marked empty (= no values have
been saved). You can download empty templates
from Export Excel templates button. The
Populate button allows you to proceed to the
visualisation and filling in of the report in the
'Filing and Controls' display.
0 1 2

- The **Run validation** button allows you to check the results of format and authority checks for a report. The validation results will open in the 'Filing and Controls' display.
- 3. Submission:

2. Validation



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

If you are satisfied with the results of the checks, you can send the report to the FIN-FSA by clicking the **Approve and submit** button.

4. Feedback reports (only for reports sent to the ECB, EBA or EIOPA)

Shows the status of feedback received from the ECB, EBA and EIOPA.

The **Populate** button in the 'Overview' display opens the report visualisation in the 'Filing and controls' display. **Export in Excel format** button downloads the report to your computer. The **Edit** button allows you to fill in the report using reporting forms.

← Submissions of reports > C	Overview > Filing and Controls	rapu-testi-raportointi	rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-raporto (
Visualize tables			@ - 13
<b>Q</b> Search			Export in Excel format
45174 - Finski Testifirma : http://www.eba.europa.eu/eu/fr/xbrl/crr/fws/co_	COREPLCRDA - 205	Context: 2023-01-31	
<ul> <li>C0001 - Nature of Report (COREP) 23.1.2024</li> <li>17.22</li> <li>C0001</li> </ul>	LET: Denomination: Finski Testifirma	Date: 2024-01-23 17:22:56 Currency:	
<ul> <li>C7200 - Liquidity Coverage Liquid assets</li> <li>23.1.2024 17.22</li> </ul>	C_00.01 C 00.01 Nature of Report (COREP)	Nature of Report	
<ul> <li>C7300 - Liquidity Coverage Outflows 23.1.2024 17.22</li> </ul>	Accounting framework	0010	
<ul> <li>C7400 - Liquidity Coverage Inflows (DA) 23.1.2024 17.22</li> </ul>	Reporting Level	020	
<ul> <li>C7600 - Liquidity Coverage Calculations (DA) 23.1.2024 17.22</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>C7501 - Liquidity Coverage. Collateral swaps (DA) 23.1.2024 17.22</li> </ul>			
<ul> <li>C7700 - Liquidity coverage - Perimeter 23.1.2024 17.22</li> </ul>			
	BARB COUL		C0001 ~

In edit mode, you can fill in values manually or import a report completed in Excel using the **Import in Excel format** button. For more detailed instructions, see section **6.2 Using reporting forms**. Remember to save the changes before you return to the 'Overview' display.

		rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-rapo
← Submissions of reports > Ov	erview > Filing and Controls	
Visualize tables		@ - ::
Q. Search		Export in Excel format
<ul> <li>45174 - Finski Testifirma : http://www.eba.europa.eu/eu/fr/xbrl/crr/fws/co</li> </ul>	COREPLCRDA - 205	Context: 2023-01-31 Date: 2024-01-33 17:22:56
C0001 C0001 2024.01.23 17.53	Denomination: Finski Testifirma	Currency: EUR
C0001	C_00.01     CO0.01 Nature of Report (COREP)	Nature of Report           0030         0785           0000         pridvidual           0000         individual
	NANN COUDI	C0001 -



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

The **Run validation** button in the 'Overview' display opens the check results in the 'Filing and Controls' display. You can navigate to individual checks by clicking the check category. You can download the report and the results of the checks to your computer as an Excel file by clicking the three dots on the grey background and then the **Export in Excel format with tables** button.

Submissions of reports > C	Overview > Filing and Controls			rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-rap	ortointi rapu-lesti-raportointi ra	ipu testi raporti
sualize tables						@ – ::
Search				(	Export in Excel format	🖍 Edit
45174 - Finski Testifirma : http://www.eba.europa.eu/eu/fr/xbrl/cm/f_	COREPLCRDA - 205 Identifier: 8513347.205	Context: 2023-01-31				
C0001 - Nature of Report (COREP) 24.1.2024 16.43	LEI: Denomination: Finski Testifirma	Date: 2024-01-23 17:22:56 Currency:				
con         C120-1-104/GC Control of Ladia Essistis           2         23:21:224 F 7:23           2         7:37:244 F 7:23           2         7:37:244 F 7:23	C (BL1 C (BL1 Internet of Report (COREP) Internet phenosen Reporting to a	Non Argen and An Alighting an and an and an an a				
	8908 20001					C0001 ¥
		Technical requirements		Regulatory requirements	Export in Excel forma	rt with
	XBRL Types	Valid	Formulae	× Invalid 6	( uses	
	XML types	Valid	Orphan facts	Veld		
	Pypercubes	2 Valid	Additional checks	V Neid	<b>67</b> 0	
	Cupicone racts	V 1010	Documents expected	Valid		
			Missing tables	× invalid 2	6	
				_		

The status of the report will be 'Approved and submitted' when the report has been successfully approved and submitted to the portal. You can download the report to your computer in XBRL format by pressing the **Export filing** button.

illing dashboard	@ - ::	List of discussions	⑦ - :
Filing Cone COREPLCRDA 205 2023 01 45174 Filing version No. 1 •	S Create new filing version	Discussions	NEW DISCUSSION
Tables population     (7 out of 7 populated) (0 marked as empty)	ixcel templates Ovisualize	Q Search	
<ul> <li>⊘ Validation</li> <li></li></ul>	✓ Run validation		

If the report has received feedback from the ECB, EBA or EIOPA, the feedback can be downloaded using the **Export feedback reports** button.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

**Financial Analysis** 



**Please note.** This stage is also visible for reports that are not intended to receive external feedback. In that case, the status is permanently **Pending feedback report**. The Reporter does not need to worry about this.



## 5.8 Load file

The Load file display can be found in the left navigation panel.  $\stackrel{lamel{1}}{=}$ 

In the display, report files are uploaded to the Reporter Portal. For more detailed instructions on uploading report files, see section *6.1 Uploading of reports to the Reporter Portal* of the user instructions.

#### 5.9 Asynchronous task monitoring

The Asynchronous tasks display can be found in the left navigation panel.

In the Reporter Portal, it is possible to see in the Asynchronous task monitoring display the processing stages of files that require processing time. Most reporters will not need this function to monitor the submission of reports.

	Asj	ynchronous task follow-up	rip	ə fiyvakoym istesti-raportointi rapu hyvakoymistesti-raportointi rapu hyvakoymis	0
PENDING	IN PROGRESS	COMPLETED		GENERAL	
Latest tasks      Filter by date					C
Entry Filing type		Tables	Action	Search:	
		No data available in the table			
Display of element 0 to 0 out of 0 element				Previous	Next



## 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

## 5.10 Discussions

The Discussions display can be found in the left navigation panel.

For more detailed instructions, see section *9 Discussion functionality* of the user instructions.

## **6 Submission of reports to the Reporter Portal**

#### 6.1 Uploading of reports to the Reporter Portal

Reports can be submitted to the Reporter Portal by uploading report files to the portal manually. In that case, the report files must be generated outside the Reporter Portal before uploading. Multiple report files can be submitted at the same time by compressing the reports into a ZIP file.

The report files must meet the technical specifications in order to be successfully uploaded to the Reporter Portal. The specifications include e.g. the file name and identifier. A description of machine-language data transmission of XBRL format reports (EBA and EIOPA) can be found on the FIN-FSA website:

https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/eba\_eiopa\_its\_description\_ of\_electronic\_reporting.pdf.

A description of machine-language data transmission of CSV format reports (VIRATI and VAKRA) is available at the address: <u>https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/en/reporting/description-ofelectronic-</u> reporting/virati\_vakra\_description\_of\_electronic\_reporting.pdf.

Uploading of reports takes place on the Load file screen, which can be found in the left navigation panel of the Reporter Portal. The Load file screen displays the reports uploaded by the user on the same day. Of the reports uploaded before the current date, only reports approved by the Portal and to which the reporter has rights through the current session's Suomi.fi mandates are displayed. Reports with integration errors are deleted from the list at the end of the day. Reports displayed in the list can be restricted using the filters at the top of the screen, by date of uploading of the reports, for example.

Uploading of a report is done by selecting File, then selecting the correct report file from the workstation files. Once the selection has been made, the file name will be displayed in the centre of the screen. The report is uploaded by clicking the blue upload button located on the right of the display, after which the upload will start. The Reporter Portal first notifies that the report file is being uploaded, after which the Reporter Portal gives another notification that the report file has been uploaded. The report is automatically validated in connection with uploading.

الے



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

Please note. If filter selections have been made in the display when uploading reports, the report will not be displayed immediately after uploading. By clearing the filters using the 'Reset filters' option, all uploaded reports will appear in the list.

Update the display using the 'Refresh the list' option until the File status column is updated with the report status Extracting or Integration error. If the report status is Extracting, check the File validation column for the report validation result. The validation result is described in more detail in the validation report, which can be downloaded to your own device by selecting the option in the Feedback report column. If the report status is Integration error, check the feedback in the Report column.

S				FILE						•				
	Reset filters													
	Reporting year Period Entity	Filing type	Taxonomy	Reportin	g level User	User groups	Submission	date : Start	16/10/2023 00:	00 End			Integration sta	tus File status File validation
	File ticket status Ticket feedback code	File		٩	Report		Q Tick	et workflow						
	Display 100 v elements Open Load file	e dashbo	ard								Refr	esh the list		Search:
Ø	File submitted	File loaded	Size (KB)	User 🕴	Submission date	File status	File validation	Ticket status	Feedback report	Original file		Discussion	Ticket feedback code	Report
	7022994-3.349_Y_AIF010000_AIF_2023-09- 30_20231016092050159_70229943#002.xml	Ŧ	1	EeditKanto	16/10/2023 09:36:11	Integration error	<b>(</b> $\oplus$	None	Û	<u>+</u>				Invalid additional checks.
-	8511917.354_TK_AIFM010000_AIFM_2023- 09-30_20231016093212943.xml	Ŧ	1	EeditKanto	16/10/2023 09:34:53	Extracting	9	Extracting	Û		Ð			Ticket number: B32C3A90F99441C1B470750D6CC35A00
	Display of element 1 to 2 out of 2 elements													Previous 1 Next

The uploaded report file will appear in its own row in the list. The Load file screen provides information about the report and the result of the upload in different columns, and it is possible to restrict the display with the aid of filters. The columns on the screen are explained below.

Column	Description
<b>1</b> / <b>\$</b>	Submission method
,	• 📥 manual
	<ul> <li>via SFTP connection</li> </ul>
File submitted	Filename of the submitted XBRL report
File loaded	Uploading of report file
kb	Size of report file in kilobytes
User	Sender of the report
Submission date	Submission date of the report
File status	Report processing status
File validation	Report validation status
Ticket status	FIN-FSA's internal file status
Feedback report	Downloading of report feedback file
Ticket feedback code	Reporting feedback code (unavailable at
	the moment)
Ticket workflow	Status of external feedback received by
	the report
	ECB = ECB feedback



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

	<ul> <li>DN = ECB delivery notification</li> <li>= EBA feedback</li> <li>PF = EIOPA PF feedback</li> <li>EIO = EIOPA S2 feedback</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Feedback colours:</li> <li>Grey = Report has not received external feedback</li> <li>Green = Report does not contain validation errors</li> <li>Yellow EIOPA feedback = Report contains warning level errors</li> <li>Red EIOPA feedback = Report contains error level errors</li> <li>Red ECB or EBA feedback = Report contains warning or error level errors.</li> </ul>
Report	Report number or information about errors in the report.

When the report is uploaded successfully, the File status column receives the value Extracting. For further information on report validation, see section 7 Validation feedback.

#### 6.2 Using reporting forms

Reporting forms can be used to create a report in the Reporter Portal. The function has its own display Reporting forms. Reports downloaded via "Load file" cannot be edited using the reporting forms. If the completion of a report has been started in the Submissions of reports or Reporting forms displays, the completion of the report should be finished in the same displays.

Navigate on the Reporting forms display by selecting the desired data collection and information date using the filters. Selecting the desired row opens a new display, Reporting forms > Tables, in which the selected report is displayed by form.

Reporting forms allow the creation of reports by entering values into ready-made forms or Excel templates. Reporting forms are completed one form at a time. Rows or columns should not be added to or deleted from the Excel templates provided by the Reporter Portal. Templates which include a functionality to add new rows are an exception.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

## 6.2.1 Reporting using forms

Reporting using a form takes place on the Reporting Forms > Tables display, in which case the Edit tool is activated. Click the **Edit** tool and select **Create**. The next time you edit the form, select Edit -> Modify. The selected form opens in a new Instances window. In the Instances window, the form is completed by entering values. The **Save** function saves the values in the form.



If an earlier version of a report has already been submitted using the reporting forms, the **Copy** function, by which the data from the earlier version of the report can be imported for re-editing, can also be selected in the Edit menu. After copying, the report is edited by selecting Edit -> Edit. The Copy function is only available for the latest submitted version of a report. If no version of a report has been previously submitted, the only selectable option in the menu is Create.

If the reporter wants to report the form blank with a positive filing indicator, the form must be opened and the blank form saved.

If the reporter wants to report the form blank with a negative filing indicator, the form must not be opened and saved. The reporter can preview a table using the **Visualize** function without affecting table's filing indicator.

If the reporter has not completed the required expected forms, the system will not allow the report to be saved.

Once the form is saved, it changes to Created status. At the same time, all the other forms in the same report will change from Expected or Required status to Created status, even if the other forms have not been completed with values.



When the report you want to complete contains currency-specific forms, the currencies appear in the Instances window as their own sheets at the bottom left of the screen. The first sheet contains the currencies total in euros. Selecting **Add a sheet** allows currency-specific sheets to be added. The key features of significant currency sheets are summarised in the image below.



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

COREPLCI Identifier: 000002. LEI: 7437007/ Denomination: Suomen F	A FINIAL OF MARKET ALL OF MARKET ALL OF MARKET ALL OF MARKET	Context Date Currency	E 2022-10-31 = 2022-10-17 15:54:19 =	g CLOR KOW	/	Significant Currency	
<ul> <li>C_72.00</li> <li>C 72.00 (I</li> </ul>	LC(DA) Liquidity Coverage. Liquid assets. Significant currencies	(DA)			/		
Significant of	ourrency					<u>.</u>	
			Amount/Market value	Standard weight.	Applicable weight	Value according to Article 9	
			0010	0020	0090	0040	
TOTAL UNIAL	DIUSTED LIQUID ASSETS	0010					
Total unar	djusted level 1 ASSETS	0020					
Total u	anadjusted level 1 assets excluding extremely high quakty covered bonds	0030					
Casie	ns and banknotes	0040		100,00%			
With	hdrawable central bank reserves	0050		200,00%			
Cent	tral bank assets	0060		100,00%			
Leve	traingovernment assets	0070		200,00%			
24	de Santor Entite assets	0000		100,00%		+	
Rec	ogniable domestic and foreign currency central government and central bank	0100		100.000			
2110	ets	0100		Locotto.		<u> </u>	
- Dec	det institution (protected by Member State government, promotional tender) ets	0110		100,00%			
Shull	dilateral development bank and international organisations assets	0120		100,008			
Qua	alifying CIU shares/units: underlying is coins/banknotes and/or central bank much	0130		100,00%			
Que	Allying CU shares/units: underlying is Level 1 assets excluding extremely high	0140		55.00%			
	any covered bonds creative Linusday Americaches: Control bank creatil facility	0150		100.004		+	
Cen	stral institutions: Level 1 assets excl. EMQ C8 which are considered liquid assets					<u>+                                     </u>	
for t	the depositing credit institution	0160					
Alter	ernative Liquidity Approaches: Inclusion of Level 2A assets recognised as Level 3	0170		80,00%			
Total u	anadjusted level 3 extremely high quality covered binds	0180					
Exter	remely high quality covered bonds	0190		33,00%			
Que	alifying CIU shares/units: underlying is extremely high quality covered bonds	0200		84,00%		1 1	
Cert	stral institutions. Level 1 (HQ covered bonds which are considered liquid assets	0210					
NOV 1	diseased local 2 ASSETS	0220				+	
Testal union			-	2000 C		+	

On the 'Significant currency' form, the currency to be used must be entered in two fields: the selection of the significant currency via the drop-down menu and the three-letter abbreviation of the currency according to ISO 4217 in the 'Currency' field in the upper left corner.

Instances					
🛃 APPROVE 🔳	EXPORT IN EXCEL FORMAT 💽 IMPORTAN EXCEL FLE 🗸 VALENCE 🖬 SAVE 🕂 ADD A SH	att 🖬 66		🕴 CLEAR ROW 📲 CLEAR COLUMN	
Identifier: LEI: Denomination:	COREPLERDAIND - 201 7437007ALE2NCIGTGA67.201 7437007ALE2NCIGTGA67 Suomen Pankki	Context: Date: Currency:	2022-11-30 2022-06-29 08-31:28 USD		
æ	C,72.00 C 72.00 (LC(DA) Liquidity Coverage, Liquid assets. Significant currencies (DA) Significant currency		Amount/Market value	Standard weight	US Dollar 🗸 Applicable weight 0030
	TOTAL UNADJUSTED LIQUID ASSETS	0010			

In forms where it is possible to add rows, rows can be added either from the button that appears in front of the row or by clicking the arrow found in the upper left corner and then the button that appears in the sidebar that opens.



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

## **Financial Analysis**

instances					
🗙 APPROVE 🗖 E	(PORT IN EXCEL FORMAT	TAN EXCEL FILE 🗸 VALIDATE	SAVE 🕇 CLEAR SHEET	CLEAR ROW	
- <u>-</u>	-				
Identifier:		Context:	2023-03-31		
LEI:		Date:	2023-03-29 14:56:46		
Denomination:		Currency:	EUR		
				-	
•	C_34.06				
1.	C 34.06 Top twenty counter	arties (CCR 6)			
	Type of code	Code	Name	National code	Sector of the counterpa
	0030	0020	0010	0035	0040
	_				



#### 6.2.1.1 Completing header information in national data collections (VIRATI and VAKRA)

In national data collections, the reporter must also complete information in the Header tab using the reporting forms. All fields of the Header table must be completed as shown in the image below. The system precompletes the Header tab on behalf of the reporter with all of the information, except for the Name, Phone number, E-mail address and Nothing to report fields, which the reporter must complete themselves.





#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

	n 🔨 minuz 📕 enz 🏮 ordutosta. 🖹k otruson	w 📲 👔 Califie Column
Maadar		
neader	(	
System code	LTC	
Reporting institution category	210	
Reporting institution ID code type	1 = TK code +	
Reporting institution ID code	8511853	
Reporting date	20230401	
Date of data	20230331	
Header code	HEADER	
Namo	Firstname Lastname	
Phone number	0123456789	
E-mail	e mai@address.fi	
Workbook version	9.6.3.2	
Nothing to report	0 = Normal reporting -	
1565 Marine J Rener (19) Societ Meners - Societ S	er selecture COIC turniser of Instancess: Linux field of th	uales T
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	estation CAX number of heatings: University of Forms > Tab	News 1
XBRL Portal About 23/02/2023	Porms > Tab	Nes

When reporting a so-called zero report, information is entered only in the Header tab and the option 1 = Not reported is selected from the drop-down menu in the Not reported field. Otherwise, the selection is always 0 = Normal report.

Header		
System code	LTC	
Reporting institution category	210	
Reporting institution ID code type	1 = TK code 🕶	
Reporting institution ID code	8511853	
Reporting date	20230401	
Date of data	20230331	
Header code	HEADER	
Name	Firstname Lastname	
Phone number	0123456789	
E-mail	e mail@address.fi	
Workbook version	9.6.3.2	
Nothing to report	0 = Normal reporting 🕶	
	0 = Normal reporting 1 = Nothing to report	



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

In national reportings LTC, KP, R and S, the user must select the transaction code for the form identifying information that appears on the actual reporting forms. In other national data collections, the identifying information is only displayed in the Header tab and the system precompletes the transaction code.

Tables										Q	) :: ×
	Manada Mar 🗸 Annualization 🔒 san	1 anner 1, a	LEARINGH ST CLEAR COLUMN								
	A 8	c	D	6	F	9	в	1	4	ĸ	
	B										
1											
2	LTC01										
3											
	Housing loan LIV ratio										
é	Reporting of LTV ratio of na	tural persons' hou	sing loans								
7	Currency items converted to euro at	present day exchange r	ate								
	Accuracy of reported data:	1 EUR / % tigures er	td metunty with three decimals								
0	System code			LTC -	ľ.						
10	Reporting Institution category			201							
11	Reporting institution ID code type			TK •	1						
12	Reporting institution ID code			45190	1						
13	Reporting date			20240110	1						
94	Date of data			20230930	1						
15	Reporting period			90 = Quarter							
-10	Reporting code			-							
17	Form Code			The second stars							
18	Currency			1 = Original data 2 = Revised data							
- 19				2 101010-040	_						
20	I TCOI										
22	LIGUI										
23											
24						Loan details				Loan	amount re
25	ID code type	ID code	Loan Code	First-time home (Yes = 1,No = 0)	Is the exception applied to the loan? (Yes = 1,No = 0)	Loan withdrawal date (YYYYMMDD)	Loan maturity date (YYYYYMMDD)	Loan maturity	Losn amount	Corporate loan (CL)	Other I primary securi
25				010	020	030	049	050	060	070	
27 00.	4	1									
28											
TTON A HANNEY	<.c										+

In data collections LTC, KP, R and S, the Header form is a separate tab in connection with the actual reporting form, and in other national reportings it is a separate form.

÷ ▶	Filing deadl	ine : Start	End	Reporting	year: 2023 Pe	riod Domain	Filing type
List	t of tables						
• VIS	sualize 🔝 comp	няе 🗈 ерт 🕶 🗸 я	UN VALIDATION 🕺 APPROV	e 💽 export 👻 🖧 He	STORY 📕 DISCUSSION FE	ED 💌	
۲	₹⁄ =	Lisplay 100	elements				
	Filing type code	Reporting Frenquency	Entity label 🛛 👙	Identifier (LEI)	Default identifier	Reporting level code	Reference date
-	LTC					201	30/09/2023
Tabl	le code			Number 0	of loaded files		
-	VJ					465	31/12/2023
Tabl	le code			Number of	loaded files		
VJO	11			3			
VJO	12			3			
VJ0	13			3			
VJ0	31			3			
VJ0:	34			3			
VJ0-	41			3			
VJ0:	51			3			
				2			

## 6.2.2 Reporting using Excel templates

It is possible to complete reporting forms in the Reporter Portal using Excel. Select the form to be completed and open it in the Instances window (Edit -> Create). Save an empty spreadsheet by selecting



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

**Save**, after which the **Export to Excel format** function is activated. Selecting 'Export in Excel format' will save to your computer an Excel file into which you can enter the data to be reported.

Rows or columns should not be added to or deleted from the Excel templates provided by the Reporter Portal. Adding or deleting will result in an error when data are transferred from Excel templates to the Reporter Portal. Templates which include a functionality to add new rows are an exception.

Completing forms that contain currency-specific tables using Excel templates requires selections on the Reporting forms Instances screen before exporting the form to Excel. Select the first significant currency sheet and a currency in the drop-down menu. On the significant currency sheet, add a value to a cell and select Save. Then select 'Export in Excel format'. An Excel file containing the significant currency form as its own sheet will be downloaded to the computer.

If you wish to add significant currency forms in the Excel template, create copies from the significant currency sheet. On significant currency sheets, information about the currency should be entered both via the drop-down menu and in the 'Currency' field in the upper left corner. The three-letter currency abbreviation according to ISO 4217 is entered in the Currency field.

20				
26			25	Move or Copy ? X
27		Insert	26	
28		Insertin	27	Move selected sheets
29		Delete	28	To book:
30			29	2022-05-31COREPALMIND_210_C6700_20220510095703233.xlsx V
31		Rename	30	Before cheet:
20				
32		Move or Copy	32	C6700_URBENCYS_1
33		View Code	33	(move to end)
34			34	
35		Protect Sheet	35	
36			36	
37		Tab Color >	37	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
38			38	Create a copy
39		<u>H</u> ide	39	
40			40	OK Cancel
41		Unnide	41	
42		Select All Sheets	42	
	C6700_TOTAL C6700_CURRENC	T3_1 (†)	< →	C6700_TOTAL C6700_CURRENCY\$_1 (+)

When the form file created in Excel is complete, it is saved and transferred back to the Reporter Portal to the form Instances screen. Select **Import an Excel file** and select the previously saved Excel. Click OK. The cell values in Excel are updated in the Reporting Portal form. Select Save before closing the Instances window.

#### 6.2.3 Validation and submission of reporting forms

The report is ready for submission when all of the report's forms have been completed. Forms cannot be submitted individually. It is recommended to validate a report before submitting it. To validate an individual form, select it in the Reporting Forms > Tables view and click Validate. To validate all forms at the same time, all forms must first be selected. The latest version of all forms can be selected using the



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

Select the latest element of each parent row button. Then click Validate.

When **Validate** is selected, the portal generates a validation report containing the desired validation types and format. The available validation types depend on the forms being validated. The validation report can be viewed either in the portal, in Excel or in XML format. In Excel format, you can choose whether you want the validation report to include the completed forms in addition to updates.

Once the report has been validated and is ready for submission, select one of the report's tables and **Approve**. A pop-up window will open, noting that all the report's tables will be submitted at the same time. Select OK.

÷	Reporting Forms > Tables 🖌
*	Filing deedline : Start     End     Reporting year : 2022     Period : 10     X       Entity
U	ist of tables
ø	v vsijalize 🔣 compare 📑 edit 👻 🗸 validate 🔣 approve 💽 export 👻 🚯 history

## 6.3 Submitting reports using SFTP connection

Reports can also be submitted to the Financial Supervisory Authority directly from the reporter's own reporting system via an interface (A2A) provided for the reporter. For submitted reports, the reporting entity will receive reporting feedback via the interface (A2A) directly to its own reporting system.

Use of the interface requires contacting, using secure email, the address NewReportingSystem(at)finanssivalvonta.fi. Secure email instructions can be found online: <a href="https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/use-of-secure-email-in-reporting.pdf">https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/use-of-secure-email-in-reporting.pdf</a>.

#### 7 Validation feedback

Validation feedback is available from the Reporter Portal in the following formats:

- Excel
- HTML
- XML



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

On the Load file screen, validation feedback (Excel, HTML, and XML) is available from Validation feedback. Excel feedback is not published when a report has not been successfully uploaded in the Reporter Portal. On the screens, validation feedback is available from File validation.

When a validation error is found in a report, the Reporter Portal will display an icon regarding the validation error type.

lcon	Description
<b>S</b>	No error found
×	Missing table error
XBRL	XBRL types
XML	XML types
-	Hypercubes
•	Duplicate facts
<b>1</b>	Schema
8=	Taxonomy validation
<u>k</u>	Calculations
Σ	Formulae (blocking error)
Σ	Formulae (warning)
<b>•</b>	Orphan facts
<b>1</b>	Filing rules (blocking error)
<u></u>	Filing rules (warning)
iXBRL	iXBRL filing rules
( <del>()</del>	Additional checks (blocking error)
( <del>(</del> )	Additional checks (warning)
	Check (error)
	Checks (warning)



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

**Financial Analysis** 

## 7.1.1 Excel validation feedback

Excel validation feedback contains a summary of the validated report and the validations performed, both the validation result by form and the invalid validations.

The validation feedback summary page provides basic information about the report, validations performed, and validation feedback by form.

The validation status is shown in green when validation is approved (OK), minor content errors in yellow (warning) and errors in red (blocking error).

From the summary page, it is possible to review form-specific validation feedback by clicking on the validation status.

On the forms, the report validation status appears as either yellow (Warning) or red (Error) data points. You can display the validation next to the data point by hovering the mouse cursor over it.

Context: 31.12.2021	
Date: 15.1.2022 0:00	eba_v4474_m: v4474_m: [C 72.00.a (c0040)] {r0030} =
Currency: EUR	sum(r0040-0170)
	eba_v10188_m : v10188_m: [C 76.00.a] {r0290} = ({r0040} +
	$\{r0100\} + \{r0160\} + \{r0220\}\} - min((\{r0040\} + \{r0100\} + \{r0160\})$

	Amount/Market value	Standard weight	Applicable weight	Value according to Article 9
	0010	0020	0030	0040
0010	400 000 000		3.00%	40 000 000
0020	170 000 000		3.00%	20 000 000
0030	140 000 000			10 000 000
0040	10 000 000	100,00%	3.00%	300 000

## 7.1.2 HTML validation feedback

The HTML validation feedback includes information on the following:

- Report identifying information
- Summary of validations
- More detailed breakdown of validation errors.

#### 7.1.3 XML validation feedback

XML validation feedback is intended to be used in the reporter's own reporting system, see section *6.3 Submitting reports using SFTP connection*.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

#### **8 Report visualisation**

A submitted report can be downloaded from the Reporter Portal in Excel format, as follows:

- 1. Go to Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports
- 2. Select the report you wish to view
- 3. Click the Visualise button
- 4. Data can be uploaded by clicking the **Export in Excel Format** icon.

#### **9 Discussion functionality**

The Reporter Portal's discussion functionality consists of discussions held in the Portal and email notifications subscribed to from the Portal. The discussion functionality is not available in the validation service.

Receiving email notifications requires that the user has entered an email address in their contact information and activated the option Receive email notifications. Subscribing to email notifications is described in more detail in section 4 *Reporter's contact information*. Email notifications include notifications about messages that have arrived in the Reporter Portal as well as reminders about missing reports.

Email notifications are sent from the address: no-reply.notifications(at)finanssivalvonta.fi.

A notification of a new message in Reporter Portal is entitled *FIN-FSA / New message on the Reporter Portal / Uusi viesti Raportoijan portaalissa / Nytt meddelande i Rapportörsportalen.* A notification of a late report is entitled *FIN-FSA / Notification of missing report / Ilmoitus puuttuvasta raportista / Meddelande om rapport som saknas.* Email notifications subscribed to in the Reporter Portal cannot be read in the Portal.

When receiving email notifications, please note that email notifications are always sent according to the access authorisations of the last login. Example situation: a user has mandates to access the Portal on behalf of three entities, but last time the user logged in only on behalf of one entity. In this case, email notifications will only be sent for the entity in question. It is therefore recommended that, each time, users always log in on behalf of all the entities.

Please note. Notifications of late reports are not sent for Solvency 2, Pension fund, AIFMD and National reporting data collections excluding LTC, KP and S.

A discussion can be held in the Discussions display as well as in the Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of individual reports, Monitoring of reports, and Submission of reports displays.



#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

By default, the Discussions display shows unread messages, which are highlighted in blue. All messages can be displayed by pressing the letter icon next to the search bar. The filter icon next to the letter icon, on the other hand, displays menu lists that allow you to restrict messages by, for example, entity or reporting type. The search bar finds messages based on the message title and tags.



Read messages can be reset to unread by pressing the left edge of the message.

	0	NEW DISCUSSION
<b>Q</b> Search		<b>≥</b>
Filing type Report	ng level Reporting year Period Entity	
Dates : Start	End Dis	cussion type Discussion status Tag
Information - test	<b>12</b> 45179	<05/01/2024 14:52:03>
Information - test	i 2 45179	<05/01/2024 14:52:03> <05/01/2024 14:40:27>

In the Discussions display, the option Information is used as the type of discussion. A name must be given to a new discussion and one entity selected from the Entity menu list and at least one data collection selected from the Reporting type menu selection. The selectable values in the Entity and Reporting type menu lists are determined according to the user's Suomi.fi mandates. These selections also restrict who can see the discussion in the future. The menu lists for reporting institution category, reporting year and period do not restrict the rights of other users to see the conversation.

For data security reasons, we recommend that the matters of only one entity be addressed in any single discussion. If your matter concerns several entities of the same group, amalgamation or fund manager, you can mention the entities in the text field of the message. The number of entities selected for messages will be limited to one during 2025.





13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

홍	New discussion	ngu ano a	iortointi rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-raportointi rapu-testi-r
0	Decemenger Information tromy Fing type Reporting Here Reporting year Prese which all least one writing and one filing type	Ter ber atta	)
↑ := ± : : : : : : : : : : : : :	Teorem 1: B I U A K Extra poor teor how		
θ	🎓 tend		

An attachment can be added to the discussion by selected Attach files.

The discussion is added to the Reporter Portal by selecting Send. The discussion remains visible in the Discussions display. The FIN-FSA's response is shown in the Discussions display.

In the Monitoring of reporting > Monitoring of reports and Monitoring of reporting displays, a discussion type can be initiated on a received report from the option Discussion feed.

In a discussion initiated from Discussion feed, the type Invalidation request can be used in addition to the discussion type Information. Invalidation requestion is selected as the discussion type in a situation where the reporter makes a request to invalidate a report in order to upload a correction report.

← Monitoring of re	eports				rapu-
+ Filing deadline : Start	🖬 End	Reporting year : 202	3 × Period Domain	Filing type Reporting level Group of enti	ties : 01, 04 Entity File validation
List of tables					
Government of the second	lay 1000 v elements		how discussions reate a discussion	Reporting level code	Reference date
O LTC	Paharin Testifirma	OY	8511853	210	31/03/2023

Only discussions related to the latest report version are displayed in the discussion feed of the Report monitoring display. Discussions related to old report versions can be found in the Discussions display.

A discussion may be terminated by the FIN-FSA, after which no more messages can be added to the discussion. A closed discussed can be recognised by the lock icon on the right side of the title. If the reporter or the FIN-FSA still wants to continue a terminated discussion, a new discussion must be created.



## 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

Test 🖨						<20/03/2023 10:49:25>
COREPLCRDA	205	2023	03	42547		

## **10 AIFMD and MMF reporting**

## 10.1 Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) dashboard

Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) is a dashboard created for AIF and AIFM data collections. These data collections are not found in other dashboards, such as Monitoring of reports or Monitoring of reporting. In addition, unlike other data collections, the AIF and AIFM reporting forms are only available from the Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) dashboard.



The Fund reporting (AIFMD MMF) dashboard can be found on the front page of the portal, just like the other displays. If the display is not immediately visible when opening the portal, select Folders on the left side of the window to see all available dashboards.

Library	
Q Search in library	
Directories	
Recently viewed	
Folders	4

In the dashboard, the funds and their managers are presented hierarchically so that the name of the fund manager is shown at the top level of the hierarchy. Both the fund manager and its funds are displayed under the name of the fund manager. On the right side of the list are displayed the statuses of the reports, which are interpreted as follows:

- Expected: If the status is grey, the report has not yet been submitted.
- Loaded/Created: The report has been created with reporting forms, but has not yet been submitted
- Extracting: Report submitted

#### 13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

- Error (file): The report has been submitted, but it contains errors
- Valid (with warnings) (file): The report has been submitted, but it contains validation errors. These include, for example, CAM errors in AIFM reports and CAF errors in AIF reports.
- Submitted on time: Report submitted before the deadline
- Overdue: The report has not yet been submitted and its deadline has already passed. A report also receives this status if it has been submitted, but only after the deadline

Esma Funds Reporting Collection / Manager name / Entity							@ - ::
⊝≛	Expected	Loaded/Created	Extracting	Error (file)	Valid (with warnings) (file)	Submitted on time	Overdue
- 8							
	0/1	1/1 100%	1/1 100%	0/1	0/1	1/1 100%	0/1 0%
<b>11</b> 2	0/1	1/1	1/1	0/1	1/1	0/1	1/1

Please note. The statuses Expected, Loaded/Created and Extracting are mutually exclusive, i.e. the same report can only have one of these statuses at a time. Similarly, the statuses Submitted on time and Overdue are mutually exclusive.

An example of the status of a report when it has been submitted before the deadline and does not contain any errors:



An example of the status of a report when it has been submitted after the deadline and contains errors requiring correction:



Selecting a fund manager or one of its funds will open a secondary view 'Selected fund', showing more detailed information on the expected and submitted reports for the selected entity.



With regard to AIFMs, the secondary view shows, in addition to basic information such as the name and default identifier, the reporting level code of the report as well as the ESMA AIFM reporting code. With



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

regard to AIFs, in addition to basic information, the view shows the report's ESMA AIF reporting code and the fund type.

#### **10.2 Submitting AIFMD reports**

#### 10.2.1 Load files

AIFMD report files, like other data collections, are submitted in the Load file dashboard, which can be found in the sidebar on the left side of the portal. A report is submitted by selecting File in the top corner of the Load file dashboard, by locating the report on your own device and by selecting the upload icon on the right. Alternatively, the report can be dragged directly into the dashboard and by pressing the load icon. After uploading, the report can be seen in the list view at the bottom of the dashboard. The uploading of files and the features of the dashboard are described in more detail in section 6.1 'Uploading of reports to Reporter Portal'.

The report files must meet the technical specifications in order to be successfully uploaded to the Reporter Portal. The specifications include, among other things, the name of the file and the inclusion of the schema specification version in the report file. A description of electronic reporting of XML-format reports (ESMA) is available on the FIN-FSA website:

https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/esma\_description\_of\_electr onic\_reporting.pdf.

When an AIF report is submitted to the portal, the system adds its fund identifier to the file name of the submitted report. If a single report file contains multiple AIF reports, the system splits the file view into a listing at the fund level. In this way, the reporter sees the validation result for each fund separately.

#### 10.2.2 Reporting forms

AIF and AIFM reports can be submitted using reporting forms, which are completed in the secondary view 'Selected fund'. Go to the Fund reporting (AIFMD) dashboard and find the manager or fund on whose behalf you wish to submit the report. Select the entity, and the portal will redirect you to the secondary view 'Selected fund'. Select the correct reporting reference date and expand the '+' icon on the left side of the window to see the template list of the expected report. Select one of the templates, e.g. HEADER, and go to the reporting forms from the selection bar tool Edit -> Create. A new window opens, where you can complete the form.

As a rule, for each report, all of the templates listed for the report must be completed. This is despite the fact that the status of templates HEADER and 24-1 is Requested and the status of the others is



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public 35 (39)

Expected. An exception is the so-called zero reports, whose submission is discussed in section 10.2.4 'Zero report using reporting forms'.

When the report is completed, it must be validated before it is submitted. Validate the whole report by selecting the whole report instead of an individual template as well as 'Validate' from the tool selection bar. Select the validation type to include additional checks in the validation report, after which you can check the validation result either directly in the portal by selecting View report or by exporting the output of the validations in XML or Excel format to your own device. For more information on the interpretation of the validation report, see section 10.3 'Validation of AIFMD reports'.

If the report does not contain validation errors, it is ready to be submitted. Select the whole report, then select 'Approve' from the tool selection bar. The system will notify you that the forms have been submitted and the report moves to Extraction pending status. The report moves after processing to the Extracting status, at which time the FIN-FSA has received the report.

If the report contains validation errors that prevent submission, the system opens a validation display. Check the report for errors, correct them and approve the report for resubmission.

#### 10.2.3 Amendment report using reporting forms

When submitting an amendment report using reporting forms, it is not recommended to use the Edit -> Copy function, but to import the Excel files of the previous report into empty reporting forms. Instructions on how to submit a correction report using Excel forms are given below.

Step 1, saving data from the previous version of the report into Excel files.

In the Fund reporting (AIFMD) view, find the report for which you want to submit an amendment report. Open the secondary view 'Selected fund' and select the report. In the tool selection bar select 'Visualize'. When the visualisation of the report opens, the top bar of the display shows the option 'Export in Excel format'. In Excel format, select 'Export to multiple Excel files' and OK. A zip file containing the reported forms will be downloaded to the user's device as the user's own Excel files.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

**Financial Analysis** 

Tables	
🖋 EDIT 💽 EXPORT IN EXCEL FORMAT 🗸 VALIDATE	
Search	Confirmation
✓ 42596 - Talmroth Fund 1 : V1.0	
> HEADER - HEADER 16.10.2023 10.49	Select an expert mode
> 24-1 - 24-1 16.10.2023 11.00	Select an export houe.
> 24-2 - 24-2 16.10.2023 10.59	
> 24-2-4 - 24-2-4 16.10.2023 10.52	Export to multiple Excel files
	O Export to one Excel file
	OK CANCEL

Step 2, initialisation of the reporting forms.

Expand the report in the Selected fund display to see all the forms contained in the report. Select one of the forms and choose Edit -> Create.

List of tables											@ - []
💿 VISUALIZE 🔣 COMPARE	🗸 VALIDATE 🕂 APPROVE 💽 EXPORT	- 🕤 HISTORY 📕 DISCUSSION FEED 👻									
⊕ ≂, ≡ В (	Create 30 v elements								Search:		
Reference date	Addify Sopy Filing type code	Default identifier	Identifier type	¢	Entity label	Reporting level     code	AIFM Reporting Code	AIF Reporting Code	Fund Type for AIFMD Reporting	File validation	Status
- 30/09/2023	AIF		FSAFUNDID			349		29	PEQF		Extracting
Filing deadline	File loaded	File size (KB)	Table code		File validation	Status		Ticket	Discussion		
31/10/2023 23:59		0	HEADER			Extracting					
31/10/2023 23:59		7	24-1			Extracting					
31/10/2023 23:59		14	24-2			Extracting					
31/10/2023 23:59		7	24-2-4			Extracting					

If you are submitting an amendment report after the reporting deadline, the previous version of the report must be invalidated before a new one is created. In that case, the user should contact the FIN-FSA's reporting experts via the discussion functionality. More information on the discussion functionality can be found in chapter 9 'Discussion functionality' of this user manual.

Step 3, importing data from the previous report into the forms.

With the reporting form open, select 'Import an Excel file' and fetch from your device a previously saved Excel file of the corresponding template from the previous report. Once the file is imported, the data of the previous version of the report will be displayed on the template. Save and close the form.

Repeat steps 2 and 3 for the other forms. Once the data of the previous report has been imported, you can correct the data of the report. Remember to validate the whole report before approval, as described in section 10.2.2 'Reporting forms'.



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

Financial Analysis

#### **10.2.4 Zero report using reporting forms**

When an AIF or AIFM zero report is submitted using reporting forms, only the HEADER and 24-1 templates are completed. The HEADER template is completed in its entirety. For an AIFM report, template 24-1 fields 4-21 are completed, and for an AIF report, template 24-1 fields 4-23.

Please note. When completing a zero report using reporting forms, take the following steps before saving template 24-1: When moving to the 'Nothing to report flag' field, select 'True' as the field value and press the enter key on your keyboard or select an empty cell on the form with the cursor. Selecting an empty cell activates the drop-down list option. Only then can the form be saved. For AIF reports, the activation of the zero report option can be checked before saving by checking that cell 057 'Predominant AIF type' is empty. Once cell 057 is empty, the form can be saved.

#### **10.2.5 Validation of AIFMD reports**

Icon Validation type Description Completion of report Schema Å according to ESMA-specified schema Additional checks Correspondence of report ((+) data with FIN-FSA entity register ESMA CAF and CAM Checks validations Missing tables Report's correspondence with × the list of expected templates

AIFMD reports include four different validation types:

Errors in the schema of the report may be related either to the XML structure itself or to incorrectly completed fields. Incorrect fields are referred to according to the technical name of the field, in which case the technical guidance for AIFMD reporting published by ESMA can be used as an aid in interpretation. The technical names of the fields can be found in the column 'XML type' of the document 2013-1358\_aifmd\_reporting\_it\_technical\_guidance-revision6.xlsx: https://www.esma.europa.eu/sites/default/files/2023-06/2013-1358\_aifmd\_reporting\_it\_technical\_guidance-revision6.zlp.

In additional checks, certain reported fields are compared with the information about the entity entered in the FIN-FSA's entity register. The following fields in AIFMD reports are compared with the entity register:



13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

AIFM

• 016: AIFM reporting code

AIF

- 005: AIF content type
- 016: AIFM national code
- 020: AIF reporting code
- 057: Predominant AIF type

If changes have taken place in the reporting obligation, they must be reported on the reporting obligation notification form: <u>https://www.finanssivalvonta.fi/globalassets/fi/lomakkeet/paaomamarkki</u> nat/aifmd reporting obligation notification form en.xlsx. Please send the completed form by email to: AIFMDReportingHelpdesk@fiva.fi.

The validation type Checks is based on the CAF and CAM validations of AIFMD reports maintained by ESMA. Even if reports containing CAF and CAM errors are accepted in the system, the reporter is still obliged to correct the reports according to the feedback from the validation report.

The Missing tables error refers to a situation where the report did not contain the expected list of templates. AIF and AIFM reports must include at least the templates HEADER and 24-1 and, depending on the reporting obligation, other templates may also be expected for AIF reports. Check the expected templates list in advance in the Fund reporting (AIFMD) dashboard.

#### 11 Logging out

Remember to exit via "Logout" when you stop using the service, so that the connection to the data on the Reporter Portal is not left open and potentially accessible by third parties.

First click the icon in the lower left corner that shows your username, and then click the **Log out** button in the upper right corner.





13 November 2024 BOF/FIN-FSA-UNRESTRICTED Public

<b>A</b>		FRANKSSTVALVONTA FINFSA Validontipalvelu - Valdentipstervice-
Login details Username		
General Name	First name	Englistations
		Be notified
Phone number		
Interface language en	Language of framework labels en	Language of documents and checks labels     en
Company		
Name		
Address		
Postal code	City	Country

## **12 Reporter Portal contact information**

Questions related the Reporter Portal may be sent to: newreportingsystem(at)fiva.fi.